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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Commissioners, 
South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc., 

Houma, Louisiana. 

We have audited the accompanying fmancial statements of the governmental activities, 
the business-type activities and each major fund of the South Central Planning & Development 
Commission, Inc (the Commission) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively 
comprise the Commission's basic financial statements as hsted in the table of contents. These 
financial statements are the responsibility ofthe Commission's management. Our responsibihty is 
to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the Umted States. Those standards 
requure that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are fi-ee of material misstatement. An audit includes examming, on a test 
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also 
mcludes assessing tiie accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall fmancial statement presentation. We beheve that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities and each major fiind ofthe South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc., as 
of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where 
applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund, Economic 
Development Administration Revolving Loan Fund, Louisiana Economic Development Small 
Business Recovery Loan and Grant Phase I and II Funds, Louisiana Economic Development 
Revolving Capital Fund and Grant Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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As discussed in Note 11 to the financial statements, the South Central Planning & 
Development Commission, Inc. has expended certain federal grant fiinds in prior years in a manner 
that may have violated certain restrictive provisions ofthe related grant. The possible outcome of 
these matters, which have been reported to appropriate federal and state officials, is uncertain at 
this time. Accordingly, no provision for a liability has been made in the fmancial statements for 
possible federal and state claims for refimds of those grant monies 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
December 27, 2011 on our consideration of South Central Plaimhig & Development Commission, 
Inc's intemal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of 
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the intemal control 
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results 
of our audit 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management's Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 11 be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part ofthe basic financial statements, 
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements m an appropriate operational, 
economic, or histoncal context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the requned 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquires of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
mquires, the basics financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained durmg our audit ofthe 
basic financial statements. We do not express and opinion or provide any assurance on the 
mformation because the lunited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express 
an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of formmg opinions on the financial statements 
that collectively comprise the Commission's financial statements as a whole. The listing of 
principal officials and combmmg statement of governmental fimd revenues, expenditures and 
changes in fiind balance - Grant Fund Programs are presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and are not a required part of the financial statements. The accompanying schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. 
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the financial statements. The combining 
statement of governmental fimd revenues, expenditures and changes in fimd balance - Grant Fund 
Programs and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management 
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of financial statements and certain additional procedures, includmg comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
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America. In our opinion, the infomiation is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole. The listing of principal officials has not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied hi the audit of the basic fmancial statements and, accordmgly, we do 
not express and opinion or provide any assurance on them. 

Certified Public Accountants. 

Houma, Louisiana, 
December 27,2011. 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

South Central Planning and Development Commission, Inc. 

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Administrative Officer are responsible for the overview and 
analysis of the fmancial activities of South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 
(the Commission) for the year ended June 30, 2011. The narrative provided is designed to 
introduce the financial highlights and offer an overview of our financial statements. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current year's 
activities, resulting changes and facts known to date. This narrative includes a govemment-wide 
financial analysis of revenues, expenses and changes in the net assets. Further detail offers our 
readers a financial analysis ofthe Commission's fimds consisting ofthe governmental fiind types 
and proprietary fimds 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

Assets ofthe Commission exceeded its liabilities at June 30, 2011 by $12,308,939 (net assets) Of 
this amount, $1,967,189 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the Commission's ongoing 
obhgations. 

The Commission's total net assets decreased by $661,567 for the year ended June 30, 2011 The 
busmess-type net assets decreased by $75,230 for the year ended June 30,2011. 

The Commission's governmental fimds reported that total assets decreased by $69,113 or .64% and 
total liabilities decreased by $1,136,238 or 14.74%. Total governmental fimd assets exceeded 
liabiJities at June 30, 2011 by $4,116,828 (fimd balance) an increase of $1,067,125 or 34.99%. Of 
this $4,116,828 fimd balance, $26,835 is held for nonspendables, $2,665,840 is committed for loan 
and grant programs and the administration of those programs, $70,000 is assigned for building 
constmction, $573,459 is assigned for next year's budget deficit and $780,694 is unassigned in the 
General Fund. 

Operating grants and contributions increased by $216,668 or 28.78%. Charges for services revenue 
decreased by $1,139,543 or 54.66% due to a decrease in contracts with Louisiana Department of 
Wildlife and Fisheries. Capital grants and contribution increased by $44,448 or 4.17% primarily 
due to increased fimding from Homeland Security grants for mutual aid and assistance task force 
spendmg. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This discussion and analysis is mtended to serve as an introduction to South Central Planning & 
Development Commission's basic financial statements South Central Plarming & Development 
Commission's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) govemment-wide 
financial statements, 2) fimd financial statements and 3) notes to the Imancial statements. This 
report also contams other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements 
themselves. 



Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The govemment-wide financial statements, reported in Exhibits A and B, are designed to be 
similar to private-sector business in that all governmental and business-type activities are 
consolidated into columns which add to a total for the primary government. These statements 
combine governmental fiinds' current financial resources with capital assets and long-term 
obligations. Also presented in the govemment-wide financial statements is a column for the 
business-type activities ofthe primary government. 

The Statement of Net Assets, reported in Exhibit A, presents information on all the Commission's 
assets and habilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, 
increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a usefiil indicator of whether the financial position 
ofthe Commission is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities, reported in Exhibit B, presents information showing how the 
govemment's net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in the assets are 
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless ofthe timing 
of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported m this statement for some 
items that will only result in cash flows in fiiture fiscal periods. For example, earned but unused 
vacation leave result in cash fiows for fiiture periods. The focus ofthe Statement of Activities is 
on both the gross and net cost of various activities, which are provided by the government's 
general dues assessment and other revenues. This is mtended to summarize information and 
simplify the user's analysis of cost of various governmental services and the business-type activity. 

Fund Financial Statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have 
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Traditional users of govemmental financial 
statements will find the fimd financial statements presentation more familiar. The focus is now on 
major fimds, rather than generic fund types. All fiinds ofthe Commission can be divided into two 
categories' govemmental funds and proprietary fimds. 

Governmental Funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
govemmental activities in the govemment-wide financial statements. The govemmental major 
fund presentation in Exhibits C through L is presented on a sources and uses of liquid resources 
basis. This is the manner in which the financial budget is typically developed. Unlike the 
govemment-wide financial statements, govemmental fimd financial statements focus on near-term 
outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end 
ofthe fiscal year. Such information may be useful m evaluating a govemment's current financmg 
requirements. The Commission has presented the following major fimds: General Fund, 
Economic Development Administration Revolving Loan Fund, Louisiana Economic Development 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Phase I Fund, Louisiana Economic Development Small 
Business Recovery Loan and Grant Phase II Fund, Louisiana Economic Development Revolving 
Capital Fund and Grant Fund. 

There are no non-major govemmental funds. 



Proprietary Funds include an enterprise fund on the fund fmancial statements illustrated in 
Exhibits M through O. Enterprise funds are used to account for operations financed and operated 
in a manner similar to private business enterprises. The Enterprise Fund is presented as a major 
fimd - the Regional Building Code, The intent is that costs of goods or services to the general 
pubhc on a contmumg basis be financed primarily through user charges. 

While the business-type fimd financial statements for the enterprise fimd (See Exhibits M through 
O) is the same as tiie business-type column, the govemment-wide financial statement and the 
govemmental funds total column requires a reconciliation because of the different measurement 
focus which is refiected on the page following each govemmental fund statement (see Exhibits D 
and F). The flow of current fmancial resources will reflect loan collections as revenues and 
interfund transfers as other financial sources as well as capital outlay and loan disbursements as 
expenditures. The reconciliation will eliminate these transactions and incorporate the capital assets 
and long-term obligations into the govemmental activities column in the govemment-wide 
statements. 

Capital Assets 

General capital assets include buildings and fumiture, fixtures and equipment and all other tangible 
and mtangible assets that are used in operations and exceed the Commission's capitalization 
threshold, as explained in Note li). Exhibit P. Accumulated depreciation and amortization is 
recorded for the life span ofthe asset. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a fiill understanding of the data 
provided m the govemment-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial 
statements are a requked part of the fmancial statements and can be found in Exhibit P of this 
report. 

Other Information 

Other supplementary financial information can be found in Schedule 1 of this report and presents 
the combining revenues, expenditures and changes in fimd balance for the various grant programs 
within the Grant Fund. 

Also included in the report are special auditor reports on intemal control over financial reportmg, 
compliance and other matters, findings and schedules as required by government auditing 
standards. The Office of Management and Budget through its Circular A-133 requhres a Schedule 
of Expenditures of Federal Awards. This schedule will present required information about the 
Commission's federally funded programs in a manner that can facilitate financial and compliance 
analysis by agencies that have granted Federal money to the Commission. 



Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Assets at June 30, 2011 with 
comparative figures from June 30,2010: 

TABLE A-1 
Condensed Statement of Net Assets 

Current and other assets 
Capital assets 

Total assets 

Long-term liabilities 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Govemmental Activities 
June 30, 

2011 2010 
$ 10,683.583 $ 

1.383.874 _ 
10,751,300 
1,445,698 

$ 12.067,457 $ 12,196,998 

47.826 
719.976 
767,802 

67,059 

243,947 
311.006 

Business-type Activities 
June 30. 

2011 
$ 639,714 

445,257 
$ 1,084,971 

$ 30,513 

45.174 

75,687 

S 

$ 

2010 

733.844 

385,288 

1,119,132 

34.618 

34,618 

Totals 
June 30, 

2011 2010 
$ 11.323.297 $ 11,485,144 

1.829.131 1,830,986 
$ I3J52,428 $ 13.316,130 

78^39 
765,150 
843,489 

67,059 
278.565 
345.624 

Net assets. 
Invested m capital assets 
Restricted for EDA/RLF 
Restricted for LED I 
Restricted for LED n 
Restncted for LED RCF 
Unrestncted 

Total net assets 

1,383,874 

1,682,213 

729,607 

3,098.435 

3.002.364 

1,403,162 

11,299,655 11.885,992 

1,445,698 

1,562,487 

1,350,338 

5.340,841 

572,247 

1.614,381 

445,257 

564,027 

385.288 

699,226 

1,009,284 1,084,514 

1.829.131 

1,682,213 

729,607 

3.098.435 

3,002,364 

1.967,189 

12.308,939 12,970,506 

1,830,986 
1,562,487 
1,350,338 
5,340,841 

572.247 
2,313,607 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 12.067,457 $ 12,196,998 $ 1,084,971 $ 1.119.132 $ 13,152.428 13,316J30 

For more detailed information see Exhibit A, the Statement of Net Assets. 

Approximately 14.86% of the Commission's net assets as of June 30, 2011, reflect the 
Commission's investment m capital assets (buildmgs, fiimiture, fixtures, equipment and intangible 
assets), 13,67% is restncted for fiiture Economic Development Administration Revolving Loan 
Fund loans, 5 93% is restricted for fiiture LED Small Business Recovery Loans and Grants Phase 
I, 25.17% is restricted for fiiture LED Small Business Recovery Loans and Grants Phase 11, 
24.39% is restricted for fiiture LED Small Business Recovery Loans and Grants Revolving Capital 
Fund and the remainmg 15 98% of net assets, referred to as unrestricted, may be used to meet the 
ongoing obhgations ofthe Commission 

The following table provides a summary ofthe changes m net assets for the year ended June 30, 
2011, with comparative figures from June 30, 2010: 



Table A-2 
Condensed Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

Business-type 
Governmental Activities Mivities Tota! 

Revenues 

Program revenues 
Charge for services 
Operating grants and contributions 
Capital grants and contributions 

General revenues 

Dues assessment 
Grants and contributions not rcstrictcd 

to specific programs 
Unrestricted in\Bstment earnings 

Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenses 
Bconomic Development and Assistance 

Change m net assets 

Net Assets 

Beginning net assets 
Ending net assets 

For the year ended 
2011 

$ 945.071 
969,630 

1,108,369 

132,533 

154,212 

846 
8,314 

3,318,975 

3,905.312 

(586.337) 

11,885,992 
$ 11,299,655 

$ 

L 

1 June 30. 
2010 

2,084.613 
752,962 

1.063,921 

131,065 

150.305 

1,051 
9,902 

4,193,819 

4,571,430 

(377,611) 

12.263.603 
11.885,992 

For tfie year ended June 30, 

2011 

$ 1.192,810 
• 

225,757 

-

-
406 

. 

1,418,973 

1.494,203 

(75,230) 

1.084,514 

$ 1,009,284 

S 

L 

2010 

1,155,417 $ 
-

210,113 

-

. 
1,545 

. 

1,367,075 

1,539,971 

(172,896) 

1,257,410 
1,084,514 $ 

For the year i 

2011 

• 

2,137,881 
969,630 

1,334,126 

132^533 

154,212 
1,252 
8,314 

4,737,948 

5,399,515 

(661,567) 

12,970,506 

12,308,939 

2ndedJune30, 

$ 

— • 

— 

i» 

2010 

3,240,030 
752,962 

1.274,034 

131.065 

150,305 
2,596 
9,902 

5,560,894 

6,111,401 

(550,507) 

13,521,013 
12,970,506 

The Commission's net assets decreased by $661,567 during the current fiscal year. 

Governmental Activities net assets decreased $586,337, primarily due to decrease in charges for 
services revenue being greater than decreases in expenses, 

Business-Type Activities net assets decreased by $75,230, due to the reduction of permits being 
issued by the member Parishes due to the economy. 

Financial Analysis ofthe Commission's Funds 

The Commission uses fiind accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds 

The focus of the Commission's govemmental fimds is to provide information on near-term 
inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is usefiil in assessing the 
Commission's financmg requirement. In particular, unreserved fimd balance may serve as a usefiil 
measure of a govemment's net resources available for spending at the end ofthe fiscal year. The 
combmed fimd balances of the Commission's govemmental fimds at Jime 30, 2011 was 
$4,116,828 as compared to $3,049,703 at June 30, 2010, an mcrease of $1,067,125. Revenues for 
the Commission's govemmental fimds for the year ended Jime 30, 2011 were approximately $6.00 
million. There are four fimding categories: intergovemmental (37.26%), charges for services 
(15.73%), interest earned (1 25%), and miscellaneous (45.76%). 
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The Commission's governmental expenditures were approximately $4.94 million for the year 
ended June 30, 2011. There are six categories of expenditures: personal services (31.63%), other 
services and charges (40.36%), loan disbursements (25.25%), supplies and materials (1.52%), 
repairs and mauitenance (.57%), and capital expenditures (67%). 

An increase in other services and charges of $137,422 was mostly due to additional purchases for 
the River and Bayou Parishes Mutual Aid and Assistance Task Force. The personal services 
category decreased $316,465 due to layoffs because ofthe completion of Louisiana Department of 
Wildlife and Fisheries contracts. The loan disbursements increased $496,987 due to additional 
loan closings in the LED Revolvmg Caphal program, A $50,501 decrease in the supplies and 
materials category was due to not needing grant supplies for the Louisiana Department of Wildlife 
and Fisheries contracts. There was a slight mcrease of $8,707 in the repairs and maintenance 
category and a decrease of $72,199 capital expenditures due to completion of building 
unprovements in the prior year. 

The Commission's financial position improved over the past year due to an excess of revenues 
over expenditures of $1,067,125, mostly due to loan repayments. The Commission has also 
received additional grant awards and contracts. Because, the Commission constantiy faces the 
possibility of fimding cuts from state and federal funding sources there is a continued effort to 
aggressively seek additional revenue sources for fiiture fimding. 

Fund Analysis 

General Fund: 

The General Fund is the chief operating fimd ofthe Commission. At the end ofthe current fiscal 
year, the total fimd balance of the General Fund was $1,450,988. Of this amount, $26,835 was 
nonspendable, $70,000 was assigned for building construction, $573,459 was assigned for next 
year's budget deficit, the remainder of fimd balance, $780,694 is unassigned. During the current 
fiscal year, the fimd balance ofthe Commission's General Fund, decreased by $230,452 (Exhibit 
E) Tlie key factor of this decrease was due to the completion of the Louisiana Department of 
Wildlife and Fisheries contracts and related transfers of excess revenues over expenditures from 
special revenue fimds accounting for the contracts. 

Economic Development Administration Revolving Loan Funds: 

The Revolving Loan Fund is the Tide IX Sudden and Severe Economic Dislocation grant, received 
from the Economic Development Administration, a division ofthe U S. Department of Commerce. 

The fimd balance ofthe Revolving Loan Fund was $463,288 at the end ofthe current fiscal year. 
During the current fiscal year, the fimd balance mcreased by $165,680 (Exhibit E). The key factor 
of this increase was excess loan collections over new loans disbursed. 

Louisiana Department of Economic Development Grant/Loan Phase I and Phase n Fund accounts 
for the disbursement of Community Development Block Grants, fimdmg provided from the United 
States Department of Housing and Urban Development. 



The fiind balance of the Louisiana Economic Development Small Business Recovery Loan and 
Grant Phase I Fund was $26,585 at the end of the current fiscal year. During the current fiscal 
year, the fund increased by $24,918 (Exhibit E). The key factor to this increase was that the 
principal payments received on loans was greater than the transfer of the loan payments to the 
Revolving Capital Fund, see below. 

The fund balance of the Louisiana Economic Development Small Business Recovery Loan and 
Grant Phase II Fund was $201,125 at the end ofthe current fiscal year. During the current fiscal 
year, the fund decreased by $552,687 (Exhibit E). The key factor of this decrease was due to the 
transfer of loan payments to the Revolving Capital Fund, see below. 

The fund balance of the Louisiana Economic Development Revolving Capital Fund was 
$1,974,842 at the end ofthe current fiscal year. During the current fiscal year, the fund increased 
by $1,659,666 (Exhibit E). The key factor of this increase was transfers from Phase I and Phase II 
funds, described above. The transfers in are made in anticipation ofthe eventual elimination ofthe 
Phase I and 11 loan programs. 

Grant Fund: 

The Commission maintains twenty-one individual grant programs. These programs are reimbursed 
by federal/state grants and expenditures that are not covered by the grants, are covered by transfers 
from the General Fund. 

Proprietary Funds 

The Commission's proprietary fund provides the same type of information found m the 
govemment-wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

Unrestricted net assets of the Regional Buildmg Code Fund at June 30, 2011 amoimted to 
$564,027 (Exhibit M). This fund is used to account for revenues and expenses associated with its 
operation and is self-supporting from other program revenues. This fimd encompasses all assets 
associated with its operation. Investment in capital assets at the end of the current fiscal year 
totaled $445,257 (Exhibit M). During the year ended June 30, 2011, the proprietary fund 
recognized an operating loss of $301,393 due to a downturn ofthe economy ofthe Commission's 
area of service. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Budgets are presented to the Board of Commissioners and adopted as required by Louisiana 
Revised Statutes. As needed budget adjustments are made to account for any significant deviation 
from beguming year projections. The major difference between the original General Fund budget 
and the final amended budget for revenues and expenditures was for the uicrease m 
intergovemmental revenues and charges for services received and expenditures increased in other 
services and charges. 

Capital Asset Administration 

The Commission's investment in capital assets for its govemmental and business-type activities as 
of June 30, 2011, amounts to $1,829,131 (net of accumulated depreciation). This mvestment in 
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capital assets includes a buildings, fumiture, fixtures, equipment and mtangible assets as shown in 
Table A-3. This amount represents a net slight decrease of $1,855 over last year. 

Table A-3 
Capital Assets 

(Net of depreciation) 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

Buildings 
Furniture, equipment 

and fixtures 
Intangibles 

Totals 

June 30, 
2011 2010 

$ 1^36,481 $ 1,270,406 

147^93 175,292 

$ U83,874 $ 1,445,698 

June 30, 

2011 

$ 191,711 
253,546 

$ 445,257 

2010 

$ 189,719 
195,569 

$ 385,288 

June 30, 

2011 2010 
$ 1,236,481 $ 1,270,406 

339,104 365,011 
253,546 195,569 

$ 1.829,131 $ 1,830,986 

Additional mformation on the Commission's capital assets can be found in Note 5, Exhibit P of 
this report. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates 

The Board of Commissioners and management considered many factors when setting the fiscal 
year 2012 budget. These factors include any unusual conditions, one time expenditures and 
increases in rates or fees that occurred during the 2011 fiscal year or that have ahready been 
announced for the 2012 fiscal year. 

Govemmental revenues for fiscal year 2012 are projected to be $6,671,785, an increase of 
$665,348 over the 2011 fiscal year revenues. The most significant change in revenue results from 
an increase in principal payments from the various loan programs. Budgeted expenditures are 
expected to increase to $6,796,170, an mcrease of $1,856,858 over the 2011 fiscal year 
expenditures. The most significant increase is due to contracted/professional services that are 
anticipated for several ofthe grant programs The Commission's fimd balance is budgeted with a 
decrease of $124,385. However, as additional contracts are obtained, amendments will be 
executed during the year. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview ofthe Commission's finances for 
all those with an interest in the Commission's finances. If you have any questions about this report 
or need additional financial information, contact South Central Planning and Development 
Commission, 5058 West Main Street, Houma, Louisiana 70360 or P.O. Box 1870, Gray, Louisiana 
70359. General information relating to the Commission can be found at the Commission's 
website, scpdc.org. 
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STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

June 30,2011 

Exhibit A 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables 

Economic loans 
Miscellaneous 

Due from other govemmental units 
Intemal balances 
Prepaid msurance 
Prepaid mamtenance 
Deposit) 
Capital assets -

Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Total assets 

LIABIUTIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Deferred revenue 
Non-current liabilities -

Due Withm one year 
Due after one year 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Invested m capital assete 
Restricted for Economic Development 

Administration Revolvmg Loan Fund 
Restricted for Louisiana Economic Development 

Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Phase I Fund 
Restncted for Louisiana Economic Development 

Small Busmess Recovery Loan and Grant Phase II Fund 
Restricted for Louisiana Economic Development 

Revolving Capital Fund 
Unrestricted 

Tota! net assets 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 3.839,216 

5,846,779 
14,739 

952,766 
1,393 

26,835 

h8S5 

1.383,874 

12,067,457 

683,825 
36,151 

47,826 

767.802 

1.383.874 

1.682,213 

729.607 

3,098.435 

3.002,364 
1,403,162 

$ 11.299.655 

Business-type 
Activities Tota! 

$ 275,974 $ 4,115,190 

353,373 
(1.393) 
9.988 
1.772 

445,257 

1,084,971 

45,174 

28,336 
2,177 

75,687 

445,257 

-

-

. 

564.027 

$ 1,009.284 3 

5,846,779 
14,739 

1,306,139 

36,823 
1,772 
1,855 

1.829,131 

13,152,428 

728,999 
36,151 

28,336 
50,003 

843.489 

1,829,131 

1.682.213 

729,607 

3,098.435 

3.002,364 
1,967,189 

: 12,308.939 

See notes to financial statements 
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txhmi B 

STATEMENT OP ACT! Vmr^S 

Soutii Coitnil Pt!inDlng& De^'clopmcnt Cotnraisslon, Inc:. 

Por the year ended hiw 30 2011 

EeontJmic development 
wu! asitstanM 

Buuness-lsTKiicitviiiM 
Econotnic deip-cleptncni 

and a&sisiBnce 

Totals 

Expenses 

$ 3.50 .̂312 

S 5̂ 399,515 

Chai^ofar 

S &45.07I 

1.192.810 

S 2.137.88! 

Gcireml f«^«vii« 
EJaej asstssmtni 
timnis and conrnbuticns not restncted 
Unrcstrifittd m^CitmcM camingj 
MisceJtaiiwiiB 

Total gcnctal rcwntM 

PrMtmm Revenue 
0|icrattit|E 
ISniitU and 

Centribptfons 

$ 5^630 

to sfwcitic pfogranis 

Capiwt 
GmnM and 

Coutrlbuiionf 

s \.m.m 

223.757 

N^ (ExDenw') Rownue and Change In Net As»U 

Gdvemnicntal But!n&Ht-typ« 
Acil^Itles Atulviiw Total 

S f8S2.242> 

(882;M2) 

132.533 
154.2 U 

S46 
8;r)4 

295.905 

S (7S.636> 

(75,6^6J 

406 

405 

$ 

(75.636) 

(957.87S) 

132.533 
154,2(2 

1.252 
8.3 H 

296.311 

Change in net asseu 

Net assa$ 

Bnding 

(586,337) 

ll,88S.WZ 

(75.230) 

1.0S4.S14 

(fi61,567) 

12.970.j06 

.1.009.284 S 

Se« notes to financial rtBtemotiti 

http://12.970.j06


i rUNDBAlANCKSHf.ET-
flOVKBNMENTALFOKDS 

South Central FlanDlng Jb &«vdopmeQt Cammbalan. Inc, 

June30.20)l 

KxliEtiitC 

A«rti 
Caih 
Beeeivablta; 

One iVmrt o^ter gpVDmnwntal urun 
Otutiit»ttoihiiiriumIs 
Prepaid !nsuiajK»! 
Oct»stl> 

T<H^ assets and mha debus 

Cenwd 
Fimd 

S l,U$J)St 

. 

gconamic 
Oev l̂opmenX 

A^miMSisfiiioa 
Rcvotvfiig 
UsnFimd 

S KM.^n 

1,218^5 

Uniistana 
Hconofnic 

Development 
Small Business 

Rccovciy 
l..oan and Gmn! 

$ 26.5« 

703,022 

Lonijiasto 
Esononitc 

tJcvclt^iwnt 
Small Business 

Recovwy 
Loan (UKJ Orant 
PhR« l( I^iiid 

$ 2dl,t25 

2,837310 

IwiiiBm 
I'cKnomio 

De«!lopmmi 
ReWJlvii^ 

Copiial 
Fim4 

$ i.%1.543 

iM^^n 

Gram 
Ftmd 

Total 
QovcintitmlBl 

Funds 

S 3Si5:2);6 

5.846.779 

1,440 
952,766 

1.85$ 

l i 2^ 14.739 
952.766 

^,862 
26,635 

1.855_ 

2,135^09 S 1.723.337 S 729.607 t 3.Q98.435 S 3.002J64 S_ 

URbiiiiiu 
AccQtinis paysMv and occiutd expntdtlims 
DuciooJli«rundi 
DcJcmidnivemtc 

Total liabilities 

Fund BalaRCti 
Ncaspcndable 
Rcsdnit^ 
Assgne^ 

Butldittecotisloiciion 
Ne<t year^ budget deficit 

Onasjigred 

$ 648.170 S 35.655 

-
3S.15I 

6S4.321 

26,S3S 

70,000 
S73 459 
780,694 

5,469 
1.213,925 

i ; ! ^049 

463 24:8 

-
Total (an4 batnnces 

Total t(d£»ltlti9 and fund 'valances 

1.450,988 

2.135.309 

463.28B 

703,022 

2«,5S5 

26.5B5 

S 2,897.310 1 . 

2.897.310 __ 

201.125 

201.125 

1.027.522 

1.027.522 

1 974.842 

3.602.361 

^3.525 
5.469 

5.8a2>930_ 

6,572,224^ 

26.835 
2.665,840 

70,00(1 
t7J«9 
780.694 

4.U6.828 

j . 10.689.052 

Seftnotetw rmsmciat laawxifls. 



Exhibit D 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

June 30,2011 

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 4,116,828 

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the 
statement of net assets are different because. 

Capital assets used in govemmental activities are not 
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported 
in the govemmental funds. 

Governmental capital assets $ 1,926,513 
Less accumulated depreciation (542,639) 1,383,874 

Deferred revenues, that represent future collections of 
loans receivable, are accounted for as increases 
in net assets in the govemment-wide financial statements. 5,846,779 

Non-current liabilities are not due and payable in the 
current period and therefore are not reported in the 
governmental funds. 

Compensated absences payable (47,826) 

Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ 11,299,655 

See notes to financial statements. 
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STATEMENT OF RrvEWUBS. E X P R N D I T U H E S AND OIAPfGES IN FUND BALANCES -

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

South Centnl Flsnnlitg A, Devetopmenf CbmmksloB, lac 

Poi (he year ended June 30,2011 

Rcventiei 
IiHCî govern tuentiti 

Inmest esoned 
Mwcdlnnwti* 

Ti^ut revcnuci 

expenditHm 
COITWI! 

{•ersMmal savicet 
Sui^iwanilinaiciirfi 
Oihtr tttvtcu and ctraijges 
(.OBI d^nRtnean 
Rquir* and mantcnancc 

Cspit^dopendittircs 

Tatsl wpaiiitturEi 

Tola! other finsijcina source* (wies) 

KM Change In FiiniJ iJalTOm 

F'nnii Bfttancu 
BtgwniEna ofycar 

fcn{f{^yBar i 

CetwrtI 

6S5,657 
845 

7.S9( , 

9(3 S7S 
SS,&4S 

148J.479 

20,533 

.,„ im,¥^} 

229,203 
<7M9n 

153.814 

(2J0 452) 

1,6S(.«S 

! 1.450.9S8 

Kconomlfl 
Devclopmmi 

AimmiUAiiea 
Revolving 
Luan Ftind 

S 54.366 

550.696 

355473 

35^,475 

195.221 

(29.54 U 

165 6S0 

297.66* 

S 46).2SS 

Lcnnupni 
Economic 

Devclopmenl 
Small Bunncn 

Rccovto' 
I-ffim sn j Oram 

S 442,512 

442.St2 

(417,S54V 

24;51S 

1,667 

$ 26.585 

touisnma 
EcOTomie 

Small Bunness 
Kttxtvtry 

$ 1.6J1.66S 

imm 

105.413 

imm. 

{2fln,n9}_ 

(SS2.687) 

$ 201.125 

Louiiiaitft 
Bconmnic 

Development 
Revdvinit 

Capital 
Turtd 

$ 1P6J8 
131.439 

(J(.07? 

8 5 1 « » 

S9I.608 

f74fl.531) . 

(96,336) , 

2,400,197 . 

1.65<>.fi66 

315.176 

S ).9?4.842 : 

Granl 
Foml 

$ 794410 
2«9.4t3 

38,736 

648629 
19036 

404.S43 

7,420 
M.9M 

i.094.622 

27,917 

7SJ9t 

mxmy 

(27.9371 

s 

Tt^sl 
GoversoKfltal 

« 2,238,245 
945.070 
74,M9 

_ 2*M8^3 

6.(J»S.4J? 

1,562,204 
74 884 

1.993.435 
1 247.083 

27.973 
1X733 

4.939.312 

>.<»'. 12S 

2.S0I.129 

i^m.m 

i 067J2S 

3.049.763 

S 4.n6.B2J{ 

See ni^cs 10 tiOBnaal uaienicnu^ 



Exhibit F 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES. 
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30,2011 

Net Change m Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 1,067,125 

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement 
of activities are different because 

Govemraeatal funds report capital outiays as expenditures 
However, in the statement of activities the cost of those 
assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
reported as depreciation expense. 

Capital outlay $ 33,733 
Depreciation expense (95,557) (61,824) 

Loan transactions are reported as revenue and 
expenditures in the govemmental funds In the 
govemment-wide fmancial statements, these transactions 
are accounted for as increases/decreases in assets and liabilities 

Revenue - loan collections (2,687,462) 
Expenditures - loan disbursements 1,247,083 
Increase in allowance for uncoUectibles (135,675) 
Undistributed loans (34,817) (1,610,871) 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not 
require the use of current financial resources and, 
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the 
govemmental funds 

Decrease in compensated absences 19,233 

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $ (586,337) 

See notes to financial statements 

17 



Exhibit G 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AlVfD 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GENERAL FUND 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30,2011 

Revenues 
Intergovemmental 
Charges for services 
Interest earned 
Miscellaneous 

Tota! revenues 

Expenditures 
Current 

Economic development and assistance; 
Personal services 
Supplies and matenals 
Other services and charges 
Repau'S and mamtenance 

Capital expenditures 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Operating transfers in 
Operatmg transfers out 

Total other financmg sources 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Budgeted 
OnRma! 

$ 738.275 
621,375 

1,500 
11.800 

1.372.950 

Amounts 

$ 

Final 

1.155.033 
696,350 

1,000 
11.800 

1,864,183 

Budgetaiy 
Basis 

$ 1.443,835 
655,657 

845 
7,591 

2,107,928 

Variance with 
Fmal Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ 288,802 
(40,693) 

(155) 
(4,209) 

243,745 

989.835 
73,150 

1,028.915 
29,412 
25,000 

2,146.312 

(773,362) 

2 6 0 3 0 
(31,015) 

229.185 

911,463 
58,647 

1,356.022 
21,408 
22,879 

2.370.419 

(506.236) 

230,583 
(65,155) 

165 428 

906,977 
55,175 

1,054,957 
20,553 
18.739 

2,056.401 

51.527 

229,205 
(75,391) 

153.814 

4,486 
3,472 

301,065 
855 

4 140 

314,018 

557.763 

(1,378) 
(10.236) 

(11,614) 

(544.177) (340,808) 205,341 546.149 

Fund Balance 
Begmnmg of year 

End of year 

1.681.440 

1.137,263 

1.527.381 

$ 1.186.573 

,527,381 

1,732,722 546,149 
™ ' " 

See notes to financial smtements 



Exhibit H 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET 
AND ACTUAt ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATION REVOLVING LOAN FUND 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30,2011 

Revenues 
Interest earned 
Loan prmciple 
Administration fees 

Total revenues 

Budgeted 
Onginal 

$ 42,600 
275,000 

5,000 

Amounts 

$ 

Final 

55,700 
450,000 

4,055 

Actual 

S 54,366 
492,281 

4.049 

Vanance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

$ (1,334) 
42,281 

(6) 

322,600 509,755 550.696 40.941 

Expenditures 
Current 

Economic development and assistance 
Loan disbursements 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 

Other Financing Uses 
Operatmg transfers oirt 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance 

Beginning of year 

End of year 

See notes to financtal statements 

500.000 

(177,400) 

(23,800) 

(201,200) 

297,608 

_96,408 

355,475 

154,280 

(29.878) 

124,402 

463,288 

587,690 

355,475 

195,221 

(29,541) 

165,680 

463,288 

$ 628.968 

40,941 

337 

41,278 
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Exhibit 1 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SMALL BUSINESS 
RECOVERY LOAN AND GRANT PHASE I FUND 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

for the year ended June 30,2011 

Revenues 
Vines imd forfeitures 
Loan pnnciple 

Total revenues 

Other Financmg Uses 
' Operatmg transfers out 

Net Change hi Fund Balance 

Fund Balance 

End of year 

See notes to finaucial statements 

Budgeted Amounts 
OngmaJ 

S 167,500 

Fmal 

$ 434.000 

Actual 

$ 26 
442,486 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive 
(Nejialive) 

$ 26 
8,486 

167.500 

(S13.500) 

(346,000) 

346.000 

434.000 

(435.667) 

(1,667) 

1,667 

442,512 

(^n,594), 

24,918 

1.667 

26.585 

8,512 

18,073 

26,585 

26,585 
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDTTURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -BUDGET AND ACTUAI. 

LOUISLVNA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SMALL BUSINESS 
RECOVERY LOAN AND GRANT PHASE H FUND 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, I n c 

For the year ended Jane 30,2010 

Exhibit J 

Revenues 
Fmes and forfeuures 
Loan prmciple 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Current: 

Economic development and assistance 
Ottier services and charges 

Excess of revenues overejqienditures 

Other Fmancing Use9 

Operating transfers out 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

Fund Balance 
B^;mningofyear 

End of year 

See notes to ^anciat statements 

BudMCied Amounts 
Original t̂l1al 

$ 450,000 $ 1.500.000 

Actual 

$ 127 
1.631,538 

Variance with 
Final Budge! 

Poiilive 
(Negative) 

S 127 
i31.538 

450.000 

450,000 

(1,160.000) 

(710,000) 

710,000 

1.500,000 

105.400 

1.394,600 

a,14S,412) 

(753,812) 

753.812 

1.631,665 

105,413 

1.526,252 

(2.078,939) 

(552.687) 

753.812 

201,125 

131.665 

im 
131,652 

69.473 

20IJ25 

201 125 
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Exhibit K 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

LOUISIANA ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT REVOLVING CAPITAL FUNDS 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30,2011 

Uevenucs 
interest earned 
Loan pnneiple 
Administration fees 

Total revenuci 

Budgeted 
Ongmal 

$ 20,500 
60,000 
16,735 

97,235 

Amounts 

S 

final 

19,800 
125,000 
10,000 

154,800 

Actual 

S 19,638 
121,157 
10,282 

151,077 

Variance with 
Fmal Budget 

Positive 
(Kegativc) 

S (162) 
(3.843) 

282 

(3.723) 

Expenditures 
Current 

Economic development and ^sistsnce 
Loan disbursements 

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Operatmg transfer in 
Operatmg transfer out 

Total other financing sources 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

1,673.500 1.000.000 891,608 108.392 

(1,576,265) 

1.673^00 

1,673,500 

S 97.235 

(845.200) 

2,584,079 
(95.000) 

2,489,079 

$ 1,643.879 

(740.531) 

2,496,533 
(96.336) 

2,400.197 

S 1,659,666 S 

104,069 

(87,546) 
(1,336) 

(88 882) 

; 15,787 

Sec notes to iJnancial statements 
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

GRANTFUND 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30,2011 

Exhibit L 

Revenues 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Interest earned 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Current 

Economic development and assistance 
Personal services 
Supplies and materials 
Other services and charges 
Repau'S and maintenance 
Loan Disbursements 

Capital expenditures 

Fotal expenditures 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

Total other financmg sources 

Net Change in Fund Balance 

See notes to financial statements 

Budgeted 
Original 

$ 1,036,527 
954,000 

25 
23,500 

2,014,052 

Amounts 

$ 

, . 

Final 

1,060,519 
301,798 

25,000 

1,387,317 

Actual 

$ 794,410 
289.413 

38,736 

1,122.559 

Variance with 
Fmal Budget 

Positive 
(Negative) 

S (266,109) 
(12,385) 

13,736 

(264,758) 

835,665 
22.900 

934,102 
2,000 

14,000 

1,808,667 

205,385 

31.015 
(236.400) 

(205.385) 

$ 

654,537 
20.618 

346,610 
7,000 

300,000 
18,000 

1.346.765 

40,552 

68,044 
(105,705) 

(37.661) 

S 2,891 

648,629 
19,036 

404.543 
7,420 

14.994 

1.094,622 

27,937 

75,391 
(103.328) 

(27.937) 

S - 3 

5,908 
1.582 

(57,933) 
(420) 

300,000 
3,006 

252,143 

(12.615) 

7,347 
2,377 

9,724 

; (2,891) 
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Exhibit M 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
PROPRIETARY FUND 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

June 30,2011 

ASSETS 
Current 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Due fi-om other goverrunental units 
Prepaid insurance 
Prepaid maintenance 

Total current assets 

Equipment 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Net equipment 

Intangible assets 

Less accumulated amortization 

Net mtangible assets 

Total assets 

LUBILITIES 
Current 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
EHie to other fUnds 
Compensated absences payable 

Total payable fi*om current assets 

Noncurrent 
Compensated absences payable 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Invested m capital assets 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

Business-type 
Activities -
Enterpnse 

Fund 

275,974 
353,373 
9,988 
L772 

641,107 

514,553 
(322,842) 

191,711 

342,197 
(88,651) 

253,546 

1,086,364 

45,174 
1.393 

28,336 

74,903 

2,177 

77,080 

445,257 
564,027 

1,0Q9;^84 

See notes to financial statements. 24 



Exhibit N 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS 

PROPRIETARY FUND 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30,2011 

Operating Revenues 
Charges for services 

Operating Expenses 
Personal services 
Supplies and materials 
Other services and charges 
Repairs and maintenance 
Depreciation expense 

Total operatmg expenses 

Operatmg loss 

Nonoperating Revenues 
Investment income 
Intergovemmental 

Total nonoperatmg revenues 

Change in Net Assets 

Net Assets 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

Business-type 
Activities -
Enterprise 

Fund 

1,192.810 

1,129,837 
80,546 
138,214 
13,411 

132,195 

1,494,203 

(301,393) 

406 
225,757 

226,163 

(75,230) 

1,084,514 

1,009,284 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Exhibit O 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30,2011 

Cash Flow from Operating Activities 
Cash received fi"om customers and users 
Cash payments to suppliers 
Cash payments to employees for services and benefits 

Net cash used for operatmg activities 

Cash Flow from Noncapital Financing Activities 
Intergovemmental proceeds 

Cash Flow used m Capital Activities 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets 

Cash Flow from Investmg Activities 

Investment income 

Net Decrease m Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Begmnmg of year 
End of year 

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash 
used for operating activities* 

Operatmg loss 

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss 
to net cash used by operating activities 

Depreciation 
(Increase) decrease in assets 

Due fi-om other govemmental units 
Other asset 

Increase m liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Compensated absences 
Due to other fimds 

Total adjustments 

Net cash used for operating activities 

See notes to financtal statements 

Business-type 
Activities -
Enterpnse 

Fund 

$ 1,151,398 
(216,507) 

(1,099,324) 

(164,433) 

225,757 

(192,164) 

406 

(130,434) 

406.408 

$ 275,974 

$ (301.393) 

132,195 

(41.412) 
3,715 

10.556 
30,513 

1.393 

136.960 

$ (164,433) 
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Exhibit P 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

June 30,2011 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The accounting policies ofthe South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 
(the Commission) confonn to accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of Amenca (GAAP) as applied to special districts as prescribed by the 
Govemmei>tal Accountmg Standards Board (GASB), the accepted standard setting body 
for establishing governmental accoimting and financial reportmg principles. In the 
govemment-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements for the 
proprietary fimds, Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and 
Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, 
have been applied unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB 
pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails. For enterprise funds, GASB Statement 
Nos. 20 and 34 provide the Commission the option of electing to apply FASB 
pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989. The Commission has elected not to 
apply those pronouncements. The accounting and reporting framework and the more 
significant accounting policies are discussed in subsequent subsections of this Note. The 
more significant ofthe govemment's accounting pohcies are described below 

a) Reporting Entity 

The Commission was created under enabling legislation ofthe State of Louisiana and 
incorporated under the provisions of Louisiana Revised Statutes 12:201 et. seq., as 
amended in 1968; provided, however, that its activities shall be consistent with the 
powers, duties, rights and liabilities as may be deemed necessary or proper to 
accomplish the purposes of a regional planning or an economic development district 
and are for charitable, educational and scientific research purposes. 

The Commission although governed by a Board of Commissioners who are directly 
appointed by the governing bodies of the municipalities and parishes, of which it 
serves, is considered a separate govemmental entity because it is substantially 
autonomous. The Commission has no component units and the basic financial 
statements include all the fund types ofthe entity. 

b) Basis of Presentation 

The Commission's basic financial statements consist of tiie govemment-wide 
statements on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the Commission and the 
govemmental and proprietary fiind financial statements. 
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Exhibit P 
(Continued) 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

b) Basis of Presentation (Continued) 

The Commission's basic financial statements consist of the govemment-wide 
statements on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the Commission and the 
govemmental and proprietary fund financial statements. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The govemment-wide financial statements include the Statement of Net Assets and 
the Statement of Activities for all activities ofthe Commission. As a general mle, the 
effect of interfimd activity has been removed fi-om these statements. The govemment-
wide presentation focuses primarily on the sustamability of the Commission as an 
entity and the change in aggregate financial position resulting firom the activities of 
the fiscal period. 

Governmental Activities represent programs, which normally are financed through 
intergovemmental revenues and other nonexchange revenues. 

Business-Type Activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external 
parties for goods and services. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
given function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those 
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. 

Indurect costs are not allocated by function for financial reporting in this statement; 
however, certain indirect costs have been directly allocated as administrative fees to 
grants and special fimd programs Program revenues include. (1) charges to 
customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or 
privileges provided by a given function or segment and (2) grants and contributions 
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 
function or segment. Dues and otiier items not properly included among program 
revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements are very similar to the traditional government fund 
statements as presented by govemments prior to the issuance of GASB Statement No. 
34. Emphasis is now on the major funds in either the govemmental or business-type 
categories. 
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Exhibit P 
(Continued) 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

b) Basis of Presentation (Continued) 

The daily accounts and operations ofthe Commission continue to be organized on the 
basis of funds and account groups, each of which is considered a separate accoimting 
entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, equity, revenues, expenditures 
or expenses, as appropriate Government resources are allocated to and accounted for 
in individual funds based upon the purpose for which they are to be spent and the 
means by which spending activities are controlled. The various fimds of the 
Commission are grouped, into generic fimd types and two broad fund categories as 
follows: 

Govemmental activities presented as govemmental funds in the fund financial 
statements: 

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the 
Commission. It is used to account for all financial resources except those that are 
required to be accounted for in another fund. The General Fund is always a major 
fimd. 

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue fimds are used to account for the 
proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than major capital projects) that are 
legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. Special revenue funds 
reported as major funds in the fund financial statements are as follows: 

Economic Development Administration Revolving Loan Fund - accounts 
for receipts and uses of grant fimds received from the United States 
Department of Commerce (Economic Development Administration) to 
operate a revolving loan program. 

Louisiana Economic Development Small Business Recovery Loan and 
Grant Phase I Fund - accounts for receipts and uses of Phase I of Louisiana 
Department of Economic Development grant funds for the disbursement of 
Community Development Block Grants provided by the United States 
Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

Louisiana Economic Development Small Business Recovery Loan and 
Grant Phase n Fund - accounts for receipts and uses of Phase II of 
Louisiana Department of Economic Development grant fimds for the 
disbursement of Community Development Block Grants provided by the 
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development. 

29 



Exhibit P 
(Continued) 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

b) Basis of Presentation (Continued) 

Louisiana Economic Development Revolving Capital Fund - accounts for 
receipts and uses of Louisiana Department of Economic Development grant 
funds for the disbiu-sement of Community Development Block Grants 
provided by United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Grant Fund - accounts for the receipts and disbursements of Federal and 
State grant program services performed 

Proprietary Funds: 

Enterprise Funds - are used to account for operations: (a) that are financed and 
operated similarly to private business enterprises, where the intent ofthe governing 
body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or 
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges; or (b) where the goveming body has decided 
periodic determination of revenues eamed, expenses incurred, and/or net income is 
appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, 
accountability or other purposes. Enterpnse funds are presented in the business-
type activities column in govemment-wide financial statements and the major 
fiinds section of the basic financial statements, the enterpnse fund reported as a 
major fund in the fund financial statements is as follows: 

Regional BuOding Code Fund - accounts for providing constmction plan 
approval and inspection services to the residents of the municipalities and 
parishes of which it serves. All activities necessary to provide such services 
are accounted for in this fund, includmg, but not limited to, administration, 
operations, maintenance, financing, billmg and collection. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses firom non-operatmg 
items Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services 
and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fimd's 
principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses for enterprise fimd include the 
cost of services, administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating 
revenues and expenses. 

c) Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "which" transactions are recorded 
within the various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when 
transactions are recorded regardless ofthe measurement focus applied. 
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Exhibit P 
(Continued) 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

c) Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (Continued) 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The govemment-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accmal basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when 
eamed and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless ofthe timing 
of related cash flows. 

Fund Financial Statements 

All govemmental funds are accounted for using a cunent financial resources 
measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current 
liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet. Operating statements of these 
fiinds present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases 
(expenditures and other uses) in net current assets. Govemmental funds are 
maintained on the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

Govemmental fund revenues resulting from exchange transactions axe recognized in 
'the fiscal year in which the exchange takes place and meets the govemment's 
availability criteria (susceptible to accmal). Available means that the resources will 
be collected withm the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough 
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities ofthe current fiscal year. For this purpose, the 
Commission considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of 
the end ofthe current fiscal year. Member assessments are recognized as revenues in 
the period for which they are assessed. Grant and contract revenues are recognized 
when eamed since they are measurable and available. Interest eamed and other 
miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenues when received in cash by the 
Commission because they are generally not measurable until actually received. 

Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accoimting 
when the related fund liability is incurred. An exception to this general mle is 
vacation and sick leave which are recognized when paid. Allocations of cost such as 
depreciation are not recognized in the govemmental funds 

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement 
focus. Proprietary funds are maintained on the accmal basis of accoimting wherein 
revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they are eamed and 
become measurable, and expenses are recognized in the period incurred, if 
measurable. Revenues resulting fi*om transactions, in which each party gives and 
receives essentially equal value is recorded on the accmal basis when the exchange 
takes place. 

31 



Exhibit P 
(Continued) 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

d) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
certain estimates and assumptions. Those estimates affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosures of assets and liabilities at the date ofthe financial 
statements. They may also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses of 
proprietary fimds and the govemment-wide financial statements during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ fi'om those estimates. 

e) Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 

The Commission, under the terms of its charter, adopts an annual budget. This budget 
is for the General Fund and special revenue fimds. Special revenue funds, which at 
June 30, 2011 consisted of various govemment and govemment agency projects, are 
budgeted on a project by project basis as fundmg becomes available The General 
Fund and special revenue fimds budgets were amended during the year to reflect 
changes in budgeted revenues, expenditures and operating transfers as dictated by the 
circumstances. 

Budgets for carryover grants and projects, which are to be performed over more than 
one accounting period, are reflected only to the extent they affect the current period 
being reported on. Budgeted amounts which are not expended, or obligated through 
contracts, lapse at year end. 

Major funds are included in the budget presentations in the basic financial statements. 
The budgets are adopted on a basis materially consistent with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), except for operating 
expenditures of the General Fund, which are budgeted when paid. The budgetary 
basis differs firom GAAP in that expenditures are recognized when paid as opposed to 
when the liability is incurred under GAAP. A reconciliation of the actual 
expenditures to budgetary basis expenditures ofthe General Fund follows: 

Actual expenditures at June 30 ,2011 , 
GAAP basis 

Add: General Fund expenditures in accounts 
Payable at the beginning ofthe year 

Less. General Fund e;q)enditures in accounts 
payable at the end ofthe year 

Budgetary basis expenditures for fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2011 
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$ 

2,492,194 

180,385 

(616,178) 

2,056,401 



Exhibit P 
(Continued) 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

f) Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

Cash includes amounts in regular and money market accounts. 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents mclude 
certificates of deposit with maturities of three months or less when purchased. 

g) Accounts Receivable 

The fmancial statements of the Commission contain no allowance for uncollectible 
accounts. Uncollectible amounts due for member assessments, contract revenues and 
other receivables are recognized as bad debts at the time information becomes 
available which would mdicate the uncollectibility of the particular receivable. 
Miscellaneous accounts receivable and amounts due firom other govemments in 
excess of 60 days comprise the accounts receivable allowance for uncoUectibles. 
These amoimts are not considered to be material in relation to the financial position or 
operations ofthe funds ofthe Commission. 

Economic loans are shown net of an allowance for loan losses. Additions to the 
allowance for loan losses are recognized as expenses in the govemment activities 
financial statements at the time information becomes available which would indicate 
the loan is less than fijlly collectible. As of June 30, 2011, the loan loss reserve 
amounted to $330,000. Loan loss reserves are deducted from deferred revenue in the 
fund financial statements. For the year ended June 30, 2011, the Commission 
recognized $135,675 of expenses for estimated loan losses in govemmental activities. 
For purposes ofthe fund fmancial statements the change in allowance for loan loss is 
offset by an equal change in deferred revenues. 

h) Deferred Revenue 

In the govemmental fimds, the Commission accounts for its loan programs in the 
operatmg accounts of special revenue funds, Economic Development Administration 
Revolving Loan Fund, Louisiana Economic Development Small Business Recovery 
Loan and Cjrant Phase I Fund, Louisiana Economic Development Small Business 
Recovery Loan and Grant Phase II Fund and Louisiana Economic Development 
Revolving Capital Fund. In the govemmental funds the receipt of loan grants and 
subsequent loan collections are recognized as miscellaneous revenue and loan 
disbursements to beneficiaries ofthe programs are accounted for as expenditures. The 
asset "economic loans receivable" is offset on the Fund Balance Sheet -
Govemmental Funds by "deferred revenue." In the govemment-wide fmancial 
statements, loan disbursements to beneficiaries and subsequent loan collections are 
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Exhibit P 
(Continued) 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

h) Deferred Revenue (Continued) 

accounted for as increases/decreases in the asset "economic loans receivable " While 
the receipt loan grant proceeds is accounted for as intergovemmental revenue.Grant 
contributions for fiiture periods received during the current year are reported as 
deferred revenues within the govemmental activities and govemmental fimds. Grant 
contributions are considered revenues of the period in which grant reqmrements are 
met. 

i) Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include buildings, fumiture, fixtures and equipment are reported 
in the applicable govemmental or business-type activities column in the govemment-
wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Commission as assets 
purchased or acquired with an original cost of $1,000 or more. Such assets are 
recorded at historical costs or estimated historical cost if actual is unavailable. 
Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of 
donation. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend 
the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and 
maintenance are expensed as incurred. 

Capital assets also include the historical cost of intangible assets. At June 30, 2011 
the Commission's intangible assets consist of computer software costs purchased and 
mtemally generated. For purposes of identifying capitalizable computer software 
costs, the Commission has classified activities into (1) preliminary stage, (2) 
application development stage, and (3) post-implementation/operation stage. Costs 
incurred during tiie application development stage are capitalized, while costs 
incurred during preliminary and post-implantation/operational the stages are expensed 
as incurred. 

Depreciation and amortization are provided over the assets' estimated usefiil lives 
using the straight-lme method. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is 
as follows: 

Buildings 50 years 
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 4 - 2 5 years 
Intangibles - computer software 10 years 
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Exhibit P 
(Continued) 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

j) Non-Current Liabilities 

The accounting treatment of non-current liabilities depends on whether they are 
reported in govemmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether 
they are reported in the govemment-wide or fimd financial statements. 

Govemment-wide Financial Statements: 

All non-current liabilities to be repaid fi-om govemmental resources are reported as 
liabilities in the govemment-wide statements. The non-current habilities consist of 
accumulated annual leave. 

Fund Financial Statements* 

Non-current liabilities for govemmental funds are not reported as liabilities in the 
govemmental fimd fmancial statements. In the proprietary fund financial statements 
non-current liabilities are reported as liabilities. 

k) Compensated Absences 

The Commission's policies regarding vacation and sick leave permit employees to 
accumulate eamed but unused vacation. The liability for these compensated absences 
is recorded as a non-current liabihty in the government-wide statements and the 
proprietary fund types fund statements In the fimd financial statements, 
govemmental funds report only the compensated absence liability payable from 
expendable available financial resources. 

All full-time, permanent employees ofthe Commission receive two weeks of vacation 
which accmes at a rate of 3.08 hours per pay period beginning with the first day of 
full-time, permanent employment. After five years of service employees will receive 
three weeks of vacation at a rate of 4.62 hours per pay period, and will receive an 
additional day of vacation per year of service after ten years of continuous 
employment. Vacation cannot be used for the first three months of full-time, 
permanent employment. Employees may carry over a maximum of one hundred 
hours of vacation from one fiscal year to another. Any time in excess of one hundred 
hours must be approved by the Chief Executive Officer before the end of the fiscal 
year or will be lost without compensation. Vacation is paid when an employee 
terminates service with the Commission. 

All full-time, permanent employees of the Commission earn sick leave at the rate of 
one day per month or 3.69 hours per pay period. No limits on this accrual privilege 
have been established. Sick leave can be accumulated but does not vest and, 
therefore, a provision has not been made for sick leave. 
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Exhibit P 
(Continued) 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

I) Fund Equity 

Govemment-wide Statements: 

Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components: 

a Invested in capital assets ~ Consists of capital assets including restricted capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of 
any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the 
acquisition, constmction or improvement of those assets, if any. At June 30, 2011 
the Commission had no outstanding borrowings. 

b. Restricted net assets - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use 
either by (1) extemal groups such as creditors, grantors, contributions or laws or 
regulations of other govemments, or (2) law through constitutional provisions or 
enabling legislation 

c. Unrestricted net assets - All other net assets that do not meet the definition of 
"restricted" or "invested in capital assets." 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the 
Commission's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestncted resources as 
they are needed. 

Fund Financial Statements-

Governmental fund equity is classified as fimd balance. Fund balance is further 

classified as follows: 

a. Non-spendable - amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in non-
spendable form or because they are legally or contractually required to maintain 
intact. 

b. Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of 
constitutional provisions, charter requirements or enabling legislation or because 
of constramts that are extemally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or 
the laws or regulations of other govemments. 

c. Committed - amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a 
formal action of the Commission's Board of Directors. Commitments may be 
established, modified, or rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions 
approved by the Commission's Board of Directors. 

d. Assigned - amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as either restricted 
or committed but that are intended to be used for specific purposes. 

e. Unassigned - all other spendable amounts 
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Exhibit P 
(Continued) 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

1) Fund Equity (Continued) 

For the classification of Govemmental Fund balances, the Commission considers an 
expenditure to be made from the most restrictive first when more than one 
classification is available. The Commission's fund balance was classified as 
nonspendable, restrictive, assigned and unassigned as of June 30, 2011. 

m) Interfund Transactions 

In the fmancial statements, interfund activity is reported as either loans or transfers 
Loans between funds are reported as interfund receivables (due from) and payables 
(due to) as appropriate. Transfers represent a permanent reallocation of resources 
between funds. In other words, they are not expected to be paid. For reporting 
purposes, all interfund transactions between individual govemmental fimds have been 
eliminated in the govemment-wide financial statements. Any residual balances 
outstanding between the govemmental activities and the business-type activities are 
reported in the govemment-wide financial statements as "mtemal balances". 

n) Indirect Cost Plan 

The Commission maintains an indirect cost plan for the allocation of costs that are 
incurred for a common or joint purpose benefiting more than one cost objective and 
not readily assignable to the cost objectives specifically benefited through June 30, 
2011. These indirect costs are allocated based on direct salaries incurred by each fiind 
benefiting from the indirect costs.' 

o) New GASB Statements 

During the year ending June 30, 2011, the Commission implemented the following 
GASB Statement: 

Statement No. 54, "Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions." The objective of this Statement is to enhance the usefiilness of fimd 
balance information by providmg clearer fimd balance classifications there can be 
more consistently applied and by clarifying the existing govemmental fund type 
definitions. 
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Exhibit P 
(Continued) 

Note 1 -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

o) New GASB Statements (Continued) 

The GASB has issued the following Statements which will become effective in future 
years as shown below: 

Statement No. 57, ^̂ OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-
Employer Plans!''' The objective of this Statement is to address issues related to the 
use of the alternative measurement method and frequency and timing of 
measurements by employers that participate in agent multiple-employer other 
postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans (that is, agent employers). This Statement is 
effective for frequency and timmg of measurements in 2012, while reporting of the 
altemative measurement plan was effective in 2010. As described in Note 9, the 
Association participates in a Cash or Deferred Profit-Sharing Plan, which is not an 
agent employer or agent multiple employer plan; accordingly, this Statement is not 
currently applicable to the Association's financial statements 

Statement No. 60, '''Accounting and Fmancial Reporting fi)r Service Concession 
Arrangements.'̂  The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by 
addressing issues related to service concession arrangements (SCAs), which are a type 
of public-private or public-public partnership. As used in this Statement, a SCA is an 
arrangement between a transferor (a govemment) and an operator (govemmental or 
nongovernmental entity) in which (1) the transferor conveys to an operator the right 
and related obligation to provide services through the use of infrastmcture or another 
public asset (a "facility") in exchange for significant consideration and (2) the 
operator collects and is compensated by fees from third parties. This statement is 
effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The Association is not 
participating in a SCA, and therefore this Statement is not currently applicable to the 
Association's financial statements. 

Statement 63, ^'Financial Reportmg of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred 
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position ", this Statement provides financial reporting 
guidance for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. GASB 
Concepts Statement No. 4, Elements of Financial Statements, introduced and defined 
those elements as a consumption of net assets by the govemment that is applicable to 
a future period, and an acquisition of net assets by the govemment that is applicable to 
a future reporting period, respectively. Previous financial reportmg standards do not 
include guidance for reporting those financial statement elements, which are distinct 
from assets and liabilities. This Statement amends the net asset reporting 
requirements by incorporating deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources into the definitions ofthe required components ofthe residual measure and 
by renaming that measure as net position rather than net assets The provisions of this 
Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 
15,2011. 
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Exhibit? 
(Continued) 

Note2 -DEPOSITS 

Louisiana state law allows all political subdivisions to invest excess fimds in obligations 
ofthe United States or other federally insured investments, certificates of deposit of any 
bank domiciled or having a branch office m the State of Louisiana, guaranteed 
mvestments contracts and investment grade (A-l/P-1) commercial paper of domestic 
corporations. 

Bank Deposits: 

State law requires deposits (cash and certificates of deposit) of all political subdivisions 
to be fiiUy collateralized at all times. Acceptable collateralization includes FDIC 
msurance and securities purchased and pledged to the political subdivision. Obligations 
ofthe United States, the State of Louisiana and certam political subdivisions are allowed 
as security for deposits. Obhgations fumished as security must be held by the political 
subdivision or with an unaffiliated bank or with a tmst company for the accoimt of the 
political subdivision. 

The year end balances of deposits are as follows: 
Bank Reported 

Balances Amount 

Cash $ 4,299,450 $ 4,115,090 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Commission's 
deposits may not be returned to it. The Commission has a written policy for custodial 
credit risk. As of June 30, 2011, $3,969,034 ofthe Commission's bank balance of 
$4,299,450 was exposed to custodial credit risk. These deposits were unmsured and 
collateralized with secunties held by the pledging financial institution's tmst department 
or agent, but not m the Commission's name. 

At June 30, 2011, cash was adequately collateralized in accordance with state law by 
securities held by unaffiliated banks for the accoimt of the Commission The 
Govemmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which promulgates the standards 
for accounting and financial reporting for state and local govemments, considers these 
securities subject to custodial credit risk. Even though the deposits are considered subject 
to custodial credit risk under the provisions of GASB, Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 
imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged 
securities within 10 days of being notified by the depositor that the fiscal agent has failed 
to pay deposited ftmds upon demand. 
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Exhibit P 
(Continued) 

Note 2 - DEPOSITS (Continued) 

A reconciliation of deposits as shown on the Statement of Net Assets and Govemmental 
Fund Balance Sheet is as follows: 

Cash on hand $ 100 
Carrying amount of deposits 4 J 15.090 

Total cash $4.115.190 

Note 3 - DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL UNITS 

Amounts due from other govemmental units at June 30,2011 consisted ofthe following: 

Amount 
Governmental Activities: 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency $ 57,254 
U.S. Department of Transportation 313 
U.S. Economic Development Administration 48,180 
Federal Transit Admimstration 28,038 
Louisiana Department of Economic Development 4,440 
Louisiana Department of Culture, Recreation 

and Tourism 2,023 
Louisiana Department of Homeland Security and Emergency 

Preparedness 438,840 
LouisianaDepartment of Transportation and Development 39,991 
Louisiana Wildlife and Fisheries 5,493 
Lou i s i anaHi^w^ Safety Commission 65,682 
Louisiana Association of Planmng Development Districts 14,000 
Lafourche Parish Communications District 2,000 
Lafourche Parish Council 15,453 
Assumption Pansh Police Jury 105,213 
St. Bernard Parish Concil 810 
St. Charles Parish Council 15,973 
St. John the Baptist Parish Council 33,034 
St. James Parish Council 22,973 
St Mary Parish Council 170 
Terrebonne Parish Consolidated Government 13,445 
City of Alexandria 1,133 
City of Thibodaux 3,440 
City of Lake Charles 3,167 
City of West Lake 229 
Townof Lockport 1,901 
Town of Golden Meadow 1,071 
Town of Gramercy 3.000 
Townof St. Francisville 150 
Consolidated Waterworks District No, 1 25,350 

Total governmental activities $ 952,766 
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Exhibit P 
(Continued) 

Note 3 - DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTAL UNITS (Continued) 

Amount eamed under various govemmental projects included in due from other 
govemmental units includes $567,892 of unbilled services at June 30,2011. 

Amount 
Business-type Activities: 
Louisiana Office of Homeland Secunty and Emergency 

Preparedness 
Assumption Parish Police Jury 
Town of Gramercy 
Town of Lockport 
St. Charles 
St James Parish Council 
St John the Baptist Parish Council 

Total business-type activities 

$ 226,189 
3,719 
8,679 
1,108 

36,957 
71,571 
5,150 

$ 353,373 

Amounts eamed under Louisiana Office of Homeland Security and Emergency 
Preparedness of $147,221 were unbilled services at June 30,2011. 

Note 4 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

Interfimd receivables and payables consist of the following at June 3 0,2011: 

Interfimd Interfund 
Individual Funds Receivables P^ables 

General Fund $ 6,862 
Special Revenue Fund: 

Economic Development Admmistration 
Revolving Loan Fund $ 5,469 

Enterpnse Fund 1,393 

Total $ 6,862 $ 6,862 

The balances above resulted from the time lag between the dates the (1) interfimd goods 
and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are 
recorded in the accounting system and (3) payments between funds are made. 
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Exhibit P 
(Continued) 

Note 5 - CHANGES ESf CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30,2011 was as follows: 

Balance 
July 1,2010 

$ 1,408,933 
483,847 

1,892,780 

(138,527) 
(308,555) 

(447,082) 

$ 1,445,698 

Balance 
July 1,2010 

$ 414,586 
250,000 

664,586 

(224.867) 
(54,431) 

(279,298) 

$ 385,288 

Additions 

S 33,733 

33,733 

(33,925) 
(61.632) 

(95.557) 

$ (61,824) 

Additions 

$ 99,967 
92,197 

192,164 

(97,975) 
(34,220) 

(132,195) 

$ 59,969 

Balance 
June 30,2011 

$ 1,408,933 
517.580 

1.926.513 

(172,452) 
(370 J 87) 

(542,639) 

$ 1,383,874 

Balance 
June 30. 2011 

$ 514,553 
342.197 

856,750 

(322,842) 
(88,651) 

(411,493) 

$ 445.257 

Governmental Activities: 
Capital assets being depreciated 

Buildings 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for 
Buildings 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total govemmental activities capital 
assets, net 

Business-type Activities: 
Capital assets being depreciated and amortized' 

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 
Intangibles 

Total capital assets bemg depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization* 
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 
Intangibles 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total busmess-type activities 
capital assets, net 

During 2011 the Commission recognized $227,752 of depreciation expense and reported 
depreciation expense as economic development and assistance as follows: 

Government activities $ 95,557 
Business activities 

Total 

132,195 

$ 227,752 
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Exhibit P 
(Continued) 

Note 6 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

At June 30,2011, the Commission had accounts payable reported in the Govemmental 
Activities of $683,825 and $45,174 in Business Activities. The General Fund pays all 
govemmental fund expenditures therefore the table below also reports the funds incurring 
these charges. 

Governmental activities: 
General Fund 
Grant Funds 
Economic Development Admimstration 
Revolving Loan Fund 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Enterprise Fund 

Totals 

Personal 
Services 

$ 52,257 

52,257 

36,658 

$ 88.915 

Supplies and 
Materials 

$ 1,548 

1,548 

$ 1,548 

Other 
Services and 

Charges 

$ 562,373 
31,992 

35,655 

630,020 

8,516 

$ 638,536 

$ 

Total 

616,178 
31,992 

35,655 

683,825 

45,174 

728,999 

Note? -NON-CURRENTLIABILITIES 

Non-current habilities at June 30, 2011 consisted of accumulated annual leave (vacation 
pay) amounts vested with employees. The following is a suimnary of changes in the non-
current liabilities ofthe Commission for the year ended June 30,2011: 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

Long-term obligations, July 1,2010 $ 67,059 $ 67,059 
Net mcrease (decrease) in accumulated 

unpaid aimualleave (19,233) $ 30,513 11,280 
Long-term obligations, July 1,2011 $ 47,826 $ 30,513 $ 78,339 

Funding of accumulated aimual leave is to be provided from revenues of various funds at 
the time paid. 
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Exhibit P 
(Continued) 

Notes -DEFERREDREVENUES 

Deferred revenues are reported in the General Fund, Economic Development 
Administration Revolving Loan Fund (RLF), the Louisiana Economic Development 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Phase I Fund (LED I), the Louisiana Economic 
Development Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Phase II Fund (LED II) and the 
Louisiana Economic Development Revolving Capital Fund (LED Capital) at June 30, 
2011. For the year ended June 30, 2011, the govemmental fund type deferred revenue 
activity consisted ofthe following: 

Balance July 1,2010 
M:w loans 
Advances on govemmentBl ffsais 

ami contracts 
jB»q)enditures of govsmmental grants 

Kevenue loan collections 

iMdistnbutcdloan 

Increase (decrease) in 
allowance for loan losses 

Balance June 30,2011 

General Fund 
% 12,068 

S 

. 

1.312,551 
(i;28^468) 

. 

-

36.151 

$ 

_ „ 

$ 

RLF 
1,264.879 

355,475 

-

(492,281) 

(34,817) 

125,669 

U18925 

$ 

-— 

$ 

LED I 
U48,671 

-

-

(442.486) 

-

(203463) 

703,022 

S 

$ 

LED 11 
4.587,029 

-

-

(1,631,538) 

-

(58,181) 

Z897310 

$ 

$ 

LED 
Capital Fund 

257.071 
891,608 

, 

(121.157) 

-

-

,„ 1,027,522. 

$ 

— 

$ 

Totals 
7,469,718 
1,247,083 

1,312.551 
(1,288.468) 

(2,687,462) 

(34,817) 

(135,675) 

5,882,SQ0 
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Exhibit P 
(Continued) 

Note 9 - RECONCILIATION OF TRANSFERS 

A reconciUation of operating transfers for the year ended June 30,2011 is as follows: 

General Fund 
Louisiana Economic Development 

Small Firm Revolving Capita! Fund 
Ecommic Developmetn Administration 

Revolving Loan Fund 
Grant Fund 

Total 

Economic Development Administration 
Revolving Loan Fund 

General Fund 

Louisiana Economic Development 
Small Busmess Recovery 

Loan and Grant Phase 1 Fund 
Louisiana Economic Development 
Small Firm Revolving Capital Fund 

Louisiana Economic Development 
Small Business Recovery 

Loan and Grant Phase I! Fund 
Louisisana Economic Development 

Small Firm Revolving Capital Fund 

Louisiana Economic Development 
Small Firm Revolving Capital Fund 

General Fund 
Louisiana Economic Development 

Small Business Recovery 
Loan and Grant Phase 1 Fund 

Louisiana Economic Derelopment 
Small Busmess Recovery 

Loan and Grant Phase 11 Fund 
Total 

Grant Fund 
General Fund 

Grand fotal 

Transfers 
In 

$ 96,336 

29^41 
103328 
229,205 

417,594 

2,078,939 
2,496^33 

75391 

$ 2,801,129 

Transfers 
Out 

$ 75391 
75391 

29,541 

417.594 

2,078,939 

96336 

103328 

S 2,801.129 

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues firom the fimd that statute or budget requires 
collecting them to the fimd that statute or budget requires to expend them and (2) use 
unrestricted revenues collected in the general fimd to finance various programs accounted 
for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorization. 

Note 10 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to workers* compensation; 
torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural 
disasters for which the Commission carries commercial insurance. No settiements were 
made during the year that exceeded the Commission's insurance coverage. 
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Exhibit P 
(Continued) 

Note 11 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The Commission received fimdmg under grants firom various federal and state 
govemmental agencies. The agency grants specify the purpose for which the grant 
monies are to be used; the grants are subject to audit by the granting agency or its 
representative. 

Audits of compliance with grant requirements of the Louisiana Economic Development 
Small Business Recovery Loan and (jrant Program for the years ended June 30, 2010, 
2009 and 2008 found the Commission did not comply with grant requirements. The 
known questioned costs of $522,000, $45,900 and $306,352, respectively, arose because 
grant disbursements and collections were not administered in accordance with the grant 
documents. It is unknown at this time if the Commission will be responsible for 
repayment of any grant disbursements. 

Note 12 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

Employees of the Commission are members of the Municipal Employees' Retirement 
System of Louisiana. 

a) Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana 

Plan Description - The Commission contributes to Plan B of the Municipal 
Employees' Retkement System of Louisiana (the System), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan, which is controlled and administered by a 
separate Board of Trustees. The system provides retirement, deferred and disability 
benefits, survivor's benefits and cost of living adjustments to plan members and 
beneficiaries. Act 356 ofthe 1954 Louisiana Legislative Session established the 
plan. Act 569 of the 1968 Louisiana Legislative Session provided an optional 
method for municipalities to cancel Social Security and come under supplementary 
benefits m the System, effective on and after June 30, 1970. Effective October 1, 
1978, under Act 788, the "regular plan" and the "supplemental plan" were replaced, 
and are now known as Plan "A" and Plan "B". Plan A combmes the original plan 
and the supplemental plan for those municipalities participating in both plans, while 
Plan B participates in only the onginal plan. The System is governed by Louisiana 
Revised Statutes 11:1731 through 11:1884, specifically, and other general laws ofthe 
State of Louisiana. The System issues a publicly available financial report that 
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the System, 

The report may be obtained by writing to Municipal Employees' Retirement System 
of Louisiana, 7937 OfBce Park Boulevard, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809. 
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Exhibit? 
(Continued) 

Note 12 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (Continued) 

Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute 5.00% of their eamable 
compensation and the Commission is required to contribute at an actuarially 
determined rate. The current rate is 6.75%. The contribution requirements of plan 
members and the Commission are established and may be amended by state statute. 
The Commission entered the plan April 2, 2007. The Commission's contributions to 
tiie System for tiie periods ending June 30, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were $129,090, 
$120,215, and $108,465 respectively, equal to the required contributions for the 
periods 

Note 13 - COMPENSATION OF COMMISSIONERS 

Commissioners for South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. received 
no compensation during the year ended June 30,2011. 

Note 14 - SUBSQUENT EVENTS 

Management evaluates events occurrmg subsequent to the date of financial statements in 
determining the accounting for and disclosure of transactions and events that effect the 
financial statements. Subsequent events have been evaluated through December 27, 2011 
which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued 
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SECTION 



GRANT FUND PROGRAMS 

Economic Development Administration Grant Program - To account for receipts and uses of 
grant funds received fi'om the United States Department of Commerce (Economic Development 
Administration) which are restricted to uses as specified in the grant documents. 

Louisiana Department of Culture, Recreation, and Tourism Grant Program - To account for 
receipts and uses of grant funds received firom the Louisiana Department of Culture, Recreation 
and Tourism which are restricted to uses as specified in the grant documents. 

Louisiana Wildlife and Fisheries Gustav/Ike Economic Disaster Relief - To accoimt for 
receipts and uses of grant funds received from the State of Louisiana Department of Wildlife and 
Fisheries which are restncted to uses specified in the grant documents. 

Louisiana Highway Safety Commission Safe Community Grant Program - To account for 
receipts and uses of grant funds received firom the State of Louisiana, Department of Public Safety 
and Corrections which are restricted to those uses as specified in the contract documents 

MPO Transit Planning Services Grant Program - To account for receipts and uses of grant 
funds received fi-om the State of Louisiana, Department of Transportation and Development Pubhc 
Transportation Section, which are restricted to uses as specified in the contract documents. 

MPO Highway Services Grant Program - To account for receipts and uses of grant fimds 
received firom the State of Louisiana, Department of Transportation and Development, which are 
restricted to uses as specified in the contract documents 

EPA Brownsfield Petroleum Assessment Grant Program - To account for receipts and uses of 
grant fimds received fi'om the United States Environmental Protection Agency which are restricted 
to uses specified in the grant documents. 

EPA Brownsfield Revolving Loan Grant Program - To account for receipts and uses of grant 
fiinds received from the United States Environmental Protection Agency which are restricted to 
uses specified in the grant documents. 

EPA Brownsfield Petroleum Assessment Part Two Grant Program- To account for receipts 
and uses of grant fiinds received from the United States Environmental Protection Agency which 
are restricted to uses specified ui the grant documents. 

EPA Brownsfield Hazardous Site Assessment Grant Program -To account for receipts and uses 
of grant fiinds received from the United States Environmental Protection Agency which are 
restricted to uses specified in the grant documents. 

EPA Brownsfield Hazardous Site Assessment Part Two Grant Program- To account for 
receipts and uses of grant fimds received from the United States Environmental Protection Agency 
which are restricted to uses specified in the grant documents. 



GRANT FUND PROGRAMS 
(continued) 

Louisiana Wiidiife and Fisheries Grant Program - To account for receipts and uses of grant 
fimds received from the State of Louisiana Department of Wildlife and Fisheries which are 
restricted to uses specified in the grant documents. 

Delta Regional Authority Grant Program - To account for receipts and uses of grant funds 
received from Delta Regional Authority. 

River Region Transportation Master Plan Grant Program - To account for receipts and uses 
of federal funds passed through by the State of Louisiana, Department of Transportation and 
Development which are restricted to uses as specified m the vendor contract documents. 

EPA River Region Waste Water Grant Program - To account for receipts and uses of grant 
funds received from the United States Environmental Protection Agency which are restricted to 
those uses as specified in the contract documents. 

EPA Clean Water Action Plan - To account for receipts and uses of grant fiinds received from 
the United States Environmental Protection Agency which are restricted to uses as specified in the 
grant documents 

Louisiana Wildlife and Fisheries Disaster Relief Grant Program - To account for receipts and 
uses of grant funds received from the State of Louisiana Department of Wildlife and Fisheries 
which are restricted to uses specified in the grant documents. 

Louisiana Wildlife and Fisheries Shrimp Refrigeration Grant Program - To account for 
receipts and uses of grant funds received from the State of Louisiana Department of Wildlife and 
Fisheries which are restricted to uses specified in the grant documents. 

New Freedom Program- To account for receipts and uses of grant fimds received from the United 
States Department of Transportation Federal Transit Administration which are restricted to uses 
specified in the grant documents. 

Federal Transit Administration - To account for receipts and uses of grant funds received from 
the United States Department of Transportation Federal Transit Administration which are restricted 
to uses specified in the grant documents. 

Louisiana Economic Development Innovation Program- To accoimt for receipts and uses of 
Louisiana Department of Economic Development grant funds which is provided from the United 
States Department of Housing and Urban Development, funds are restricted to uses specified in the 
grant documents. 



COMBINING STATKMENT OF fiOVKRNmNl AL ^UND REVENU^A 
EXPENDITIIRFS AND CHA^JGKS IN VVHO BALANCE-

GRANT FEM) PROGRAMS 

Sontb Central Flmiiuag St Develgpm«iit Conuninion, Inc. 

For die year coded June 30, :^ n 

Revenues 
inte [govemmental 
Charges fttf services 
Inicreiit eamed 
MisccUnncous 

Toral revenues 

Expenditures 
Cwirciit 

Bconoinie developnient and lusistmico 
hason.it scA t̂cas 
Snf>pf los and maifimis 
Oiltw 6E[Vi«t!s mtd dmi^cj 
Rcpms ttnd mauitttitance 

C&ffxtii expenditures 

Total «xi]Cf)iliiurc3 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
tyvcn-expenditures 

Other Financing SonrcKi {Vsfs) 
Operating IranafCTS in 
Ojwrsting IransH^ onl 

Total other fnwnang 
sources (tiscs) 

^cl Chaaif! m Pund Etotsnce 

Sajitomie 
Dcvclc^ment 

Admimstraiian 
CraniProarsm 

S W4.2n 

. 
» 
, 

144,213 

163,639 
(,649 

34,078 

. 

. 
199.366 

(53.1531 

55.153 

55,153 

,̂  

Umi»a»s 
Dflfaitiuem 
ofCidtfiro. 
Re«c»ti(Mi 

and TtitiTistn 
OmmProRfan 

S 15000 

-
-

.. '5,000 

10,000 

-
3,68S 

27.312 

-
-

30.000 

-

s 

Lovisittna 
Wildbfe^ 
FtsJwncs 

Giistavrtl© 
Economic 

Disaster Relief 
uTBUt ProSntm 

S 2S3301 

-
. 

283.101 

IM4ZI 
96$ 

64,316 
480 

. 
1S0,082 

. mm.... 

• 
(ro3jii9i 

(103^19) 

s ;,„ 

Uuisiana 
HigUway 
Safely 

Commission 
SR& CoDunum^ 
GramPmmim 

S 111545 

-
-

19,233 

121,778 

35710 
804 

87^99 

-
. 

123.813 

f2.03S) 

2 035 

• 

2,035 

$ 

MPO 
Inimii 

Ftanttiflg 
Services 

Giant 
P«>Bram 

S 49,550 

-
. 

49.550 

43,440 
2.J9) 
5^97 

. 
» 

50,918 

(U68) 

1,368 

. 

>P6S 

$ 
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Schedule t 

MPO 
Higĥ WIY 
Services 

Onint 
Prosnim 

fePA 
Brownfidd 
Ptflfolcmn 

Assessment 
Ciraiil ProKHsm 

fcPA 
Browiifield 

Grant Projtram 

Browi ^ ld 
Pctfolami 

Assessment 

J^rt H w 
Grant IVosram 

EPA 
Btownfield 

Haaarddus Site 

Assessment 

Oraiit RrOKlflin 

0n>wnJ1eId 
HozQrdoikS Site 
A$s(^i>enl 

PflfT 1\V0 
Gmnt ProsrAin 

Louiaano 

Wildlife & 
Fisheries 

Grant Pfosram 

Delta 
Regional 

Anihonty 

Grant Profimoi 

River Regnni 

Transpoitttiwi 
Mosltn^I^an 

Gtani ProHTwn 

S 255,280 S 16157 S 74.820 671 1340 717 
619 

10.000 

255.280 16.197 

n .503 

88.323 671 1.340 717 619 10.0QQ 

I9),t62 
9.096 

3^.989 

6940 

i'tm 
256.181 

<9on 

1617 

2S 
15 892 

17.537 

0,340) 

27,864 
442 

60082 

-
• 

88.388 

(65) 

390 

-
281 

-
-

671 

. 

1,899 
109 

Km 

3.136 

(1.796] 

901 

901 

1340 

1,340 

65 

65 

J796 

1.796 

436 

28t 

717 

1.094 
46 

420 

1 1 3 1 

327 

1,619 S 219 

5 

1,360 

(9411 

941 

-

941 

. i _ 

13.247 

(V47) 

3,347 

-

3,247 

- $ 

219 

(219) 

219 

-

219 

. 
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF GOVEBNMENTAL FUND REVENUES. 
EXFENPITIIRES ANI? a iANGES IN KtlJ^P a \ t A N C h -

GRANT FUND PROGRAMS 

South Central Plnttnint; & Devetopmont CommBslon, Int:. 

For the year eiiUwl JIHM 30.2011 

Schedule I 
(Continued) 

Revenues 
Intergovernmental 
Chmges for »rvices 
lutereS earned 
Miscellspcous 

loialraventtes 

Dimjiii 

EcoiKmH«dcvci<qjmcnt Mid assistHRU. 
PcrsOTifll services 
Stipplics and tnatcnnls 
Other services nnd chatges 
R p̂iiim Etiul tn«iRtcncine9 

Q^tal fxpemmiir^ 

Tota) Uipeiiditiucs 

Exww (dfeii citing) of xevetuics 
o\er in^ndilun» 

Otiier HiMncing Sburecs (Uses) 
OpcrottDS intnGfers in 
(^peialnig tronsiers out 

Tolnl otlier fitHitwing 
sources (uses) 

Net Cbanite tn Ptind Balance 

Ei>A 
Rivtjr Region 
Waste VValiw 

Grant ProjQiiHi 

30,223 

S0.22S 

1,807 
93 

48325 

30J25 

EPA 
Clean Wotur 
Action Plan 

S 10790 

10,790 

Louisiana 
Wildlife 

and 
rtshencs 
Disaster 
Relief 

Grant Pnijinnn 

1 oiusiftim 
Wildlife 

Dfid 
Pistien«3 
Stmmp 

Refneeralion 
Grant ProKKim 

$ 5.493 

, 

5.493 

New 
Fflxdom 
ProKTitm 

$ 36630 

-

. 

36.650 

Fedcnlt 
Transit 

Adniintslralion 

S 12.972 

-

. 

12.972 

LCD 
Innovation 
Proaram 

S 4,440 

-

. 

4.440 

Total 

S 794,410 
289,413 

38.736 

I I22.S39 

3,320 
7 

7,463 

10.790 

5.796 

5.796 

is.2m 

5 796 

5,796 

4,189 
351 
844 

• 

33,924 
21 

2 705 

-
-

5 765 

. 
7,207 

-

66St 
319 

• 
-
. 

648,629 
19036 

404,543 
7,420 

14994 

5.384 

109 

Am. 

Am. 

36.650 l2Sn 6.970 

a^30) 

2,530 

2.530 

1J94.622 

27,937 

75391 
003328) 

(27.937) 
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SPECIAL REPORTS OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 



Bourgeois Bennett 
*«»CERTiFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTAN'i I CONSULrnNTS PUBLIC ACCOUNTAN'i 1 CONSULtANTS 

A (.IMITED UftBILITr COMCANV 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Board of Commissioners, 
South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc., 

Houma, Louisiana. 

We have audited the financial statements ofthe govemmental activities, the business-type 
activities and each major fund of South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc , (the 
Commission), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the 
Commission's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 27, 
2011. We conducted om: audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United States. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

Management of the Commission is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
intemal control over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the 
Commission's intemal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing 
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opmions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opimon on the effectiveness ofthe Commission's intemal control over 
financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express and opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Commission's intemal control over financial reportmg. 

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not 
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned fimctions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the Commission's financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 
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Our consideration of intemal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
intemal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or 
material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over fmancial 
reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Commission's financial 
statements are fi*ee of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could 
have a direct and material effect on the detennination of financial statement amounts. However, 
providmg an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion The results of our test disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that is required to be reported under Govemment Auditing 
Standards. 

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the Commission in a 
separate letter dated December 27, 2011. 

The Commission's response to the other matters identified in our separate letter is 
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit the 
Commission's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it 

This report is intended solely for the mformation and use ofthe Board of Commissioners, 
management, the Legislative Auditor for the State of Louisiana and federal awarding agencies and 
pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24-513, this report is distributed by the 
Legislative Auditor as a pubUc document. 

Certified Public Accountants. 

Houma, Louisiana, 
December 27,2011 
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Bourgeois Bennett 
C^CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS I CONSULTANTS 

A LIMITED LIABILITT COMPANY 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REOUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A 
DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB 

CIRCULARA-133 

To the Board of Commissioners, 
South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc, 

Houma, Louisiana. 

Compliance 
I 

We have audited the compliance of South Central Plannmg & Development Commission, 
Inc., (the Commission), with the types of compliance requirements described in the U S Office of 
Management and Budget COMB') Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct 
and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. The 
Commission's major federal programs are identified m the smnmary of auditor's results section of 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements 
of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to its major federal program is the 
responsibility ofthe Commission's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
Commission's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditmg standards generally 
accepted in the Umted States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States. Local Govemments and Non-Profit Organizations. Those 
Standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requhements referred to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Commission's comphance with those 
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit 
does not provide a legal determination on the Commission's compliance with those requirements. 
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In our opmion, the Commission complied in all material respects, with the requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs 
for the year ended June 30,2011. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management ofthe Commission is responsible for establishing and maintaming effective 
intemal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants 
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the 
Commission's intemal control over comphance with the requirements that could have a dhect and 
material effect on a major federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on intemal control over comphance in 
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness ofthe Commission's intemal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of 
performmg thek assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type 
of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in mtemal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 
timely basis. 

Our consideration of intemal control over comphance was for the lunited purpose 
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in 
intemal control over compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material 
weakness. We did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we 
consider to be a material weaknesses, as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use ofthe Board of Commissioners, 
management. Legislative Auditor for the State of Louisiana and federal awarding agencies and 
pass-lhrough entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these 
specified parties. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the 
Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

Certified Public Accountants. 

Houma, Louisiana, 
December 27,2011. 
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENPmjRES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30,2011 

Federal Grantor/Pass-
Through Gntfttor/Program Title 

U.S. Department of Commerce 
Economic Development Administration 

Support for Planning Orgamzations 

Sudden and Severe Economic Dislocation 
Adjusttnent Revolvu^ Loan Fund 

Total Department of Commerce 

US Department of Housing and Urban Development 
Office of Community Plannmg and Development 

Pass-Through Payments 
Lomsiana Department of Economic Development 

Community Development Block Grant 
Small Busmess Recovery Loan and Grant Program - Phase I 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Program - Phase U 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Program-

Revolving Capital fund 
Small Busmess Recovery Loan and Grant Program-

Innovsaion Program 

Total U S Department of Housing and Urfean Development 

US Department of the Interior 
National Park Service 

Pass-Throueh Payments. 
Recreation and TomstP. S^e of Louisiana, 

Office of Cultural Development 
Histonc Preservation 

U S. Department of Transportation 

Federal Highway Administration 
Pasii-ThroMghFaYmentft, 

Louisiana Department of Transportation and Development 
Highway Planning and Constmction -Metropolitan Planning 

Federal Transit Formula Grants 

Federal Transit Administration 
Paas-Throueb Payment̂ . 

I jiyifiifliia Department of Transportation and Development 
Floral Transit Metropolitan Planning Grants - Transit Planmng 

National Highway Traffic Safely Administration 
Pass-Through Payments 

Department of Public Safety and Corrections -
Louisiana Highway Safety Commission. 

State and Community Highway Safety -
South Central Safe Communis Program 

Total U S Department of Transportation 

Federal 
CFDA 

Number 

11303 
11303 

U307 

Federal Award/ 
Pass-Through 

EnUty Identiiying 
Number 

08-06-04611 
08-83-04530 

08-59-02912 01 

Federal 
Expenditures 

$ 37.033 
107,180 

2177 010 

2.321.223 

14 228 
14228 

14 228 

14 228 

07096A/645-872 
700587/645872 

932,770 
3,156,616 

3,977,009 

4.440 

8,070.835 

15 904 

20205 

20 507 
20 507 

20 505 

20 600 

22-09-21824 

736-55-0050 

LA-90-X303-00 
LA-90-X362 

LA-80-0019 
741-55-0115 

SA 20100300 

15.000 

204,224 

10,378 
36,650 

49.550 

111,545 
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
(Contmued) 

Soutb Central Planmng & Development Commission, Inc. 

Tor ibe year ended June 30,2011 

Federal Grantor/Pass-

ThroDgh Grantor/Program Title 

Environmental Protection Agency 
Ofilce of the Chief rmancinl OlTiccr 

Congressional ly Mandated Projects • River Region Water 
and Wastewater Improvement Plan 

Survej-s, Studies. Invcsiigmions and Special Pu^wsc Grants • 
SOUUJ Centml Louisiana Clean Water Acuon Plan 

f-edcral 
CFDA 

Number 

66:202 

66606 

Federal AwarOf 
Pa3s>Through 

Entity Idcnllfying 

Number 

XP-9662460I-0 

XP-97685601-0 

Federal 

Extienditurct 

27,625 

5,934 

Omce of Solid Waste aftd Emergen^' Response 
BrovwisHeld Pilots Cooperative Agrecnicnis - Louisiano Bro^vnsficld Pilot Program 
Brownsfield Assessment and Cleanup Cooperative Agrcciiiciiis -

Btownsflcld Petroleum Assessment 
Bro\vTisficld Haxardous Site Assessment 
Brownsfield Rc\'oIvtiig Loan Fund 
Brownsfield Petroleum Aascssmcni Pt 2 
Brownsfield Ha/ardous Site Asaissmcni Pt 2 

Total Environmental l^otection Agency 

Delta Regional Authority 
Dclui Local Dcvclopmoit District Assistance 

U-S Department of Homeland Security 
Pass-Thrmieli Payments. 

Louisiana Departmeni of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness. 
River Bi^ou Parish Mutiml Atd and Assistance 1 ask force 

Homeland Security Grant Program 
GOSHEP Reimbursable Cram Award 

Hsmra Miiigaiton Grant 

Total U S Department of Homeland Security 

Total 

66818 
66818 
66818 
66 818 
66.818 

BF^664020l-0 
BF-S^SlSSOt-O 
BL-96693301 

16,197 
1.340 

74,820 
671 
717 

90202 2010 Grant Program 

97 067 

97 067 

101-95 

127.304 

10.000 

I 277 552 

225.757 

1.503.309 

S ^ notes to schedule of expendttur^ of federal a\^rds 
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NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

June 30,2011 

Note 1 - GENERAL 

The Commission's Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of 
alJ federal financial assistance programs of the Commission. Expenditures of all federal 
financial assistance received directly from federal agencies are mcluded on the schedule, 
as well as federal financial assistance passed-through other govemment agencies. 

Note 2 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal 
grant activity of the South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc and is 
presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States. 
Local Govemments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented 
in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the 
basic financial statements. 

Note 3 - VALUE OF LOANS OUTSTANDING 

The value of loans outstanding at June 30, 2011 for the Sudden and Severe Economic 
Dislocation Adjustment Revolving Loan Fund, Federal CFDA number 11.307, was 
$1,284,582, and the Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant Programs, Federal CFDA 
number 14.228, $5,916,720. In addition an allowance for loan losses amounting to 
$330,000 has been recorded in the financial statements as of June 30, 2011. 

Note 4 - FINDINGS OF NONCOMPLIANCE 

There were no federal award findings or questioned costs reported during the audit for the 
year ended June 30,2011. 
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30,2011 

Section I Summary of Auditor's Results 

a) Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued: unqualified 

Intemal control over financial reporting: 

• Material weakness(es) identified'? 
• Significant deficiencies identified that are not 

considered to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

b) Federal Awards 

Intemal control over major programs: 

• Material weakness(es) identified? 
• Significant deficiencies identified that are not 

considered to be material weaknesses? 

_yes X no 

_yes X none reported 

yes X no 

jes no 

jes X none reported 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major program: unqualified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with section 510(a) of 
Circular A-133? yes X no 

c) Identification of Major Program: 

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program for Cluster) 

14 228 Community Development Block Grants/ 
Small Business Recovery Loan and Grant 
Programs 
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS 
(Continued) 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended Jime 30, 2011 

Section I Summary of Auditor's Results (Continued) 

c) Identification of Major Program (continued): 

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program for Cluster) 

97.067 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

River Bayou Parish Mutual Aid and 
Assistance Task Force - Homeland 
Security Grant Program 

$300,000 

yes X no 

Section II Financial Statement Findings 

No financial statement findings were noted during the audit for the year ended June 30, 2011. 

Section HI Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

There were no federal award findings or questioned costs reported during the audit for the year 
ended June 30,2011 
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REPORTS BY MANAGEMENT 



SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30,2011 

Section I Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Basic Financial Statements 

Intemal Control 

10-1 Recommendation - We recommend information in sufficient detail be provided to 
the Accounting Department to recognize changes in the allowance for loan losses as 
such information becomes available. 

Management's Response - The Commission provided adequate detail among the 
necessary departments of any relevant changes in the allowance for loan losses when 
it becomes available Accordingly, the allowance for loan losses was adjusted 
during the year Resolved. 

Compliance 

10-2 Recommendation - We recommend that the Commission comply with state law and 
submit their audited financial statements to the Legislative Auditor withm six months 
ofthe close of their fiscal year. 

Management's Response - The Commission abided by State Law by submitting our 
audited financial statements to the Legislative Auditor within six months ofthe close 
of our fiscal year. Resolved. 

Section II Internal Control and Compliance Material to Federal Awards 

Intemal Control and Compliance 

10-3 Recommendation - We recommend that the Commission admimster the grant m 
accordance with the intemal guideline document and that the board and staff 
familiarize themselves with the policy. 

Management's Response - The Commission's staff obtained documentation required 
by intemal guidelines for all previously existing and new loans. In addition a new 
intemal guideline policy was adopted during the fiscal year. New loans issued under 
the new policy have included all necessary information. Resolved. 
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SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS 

(Continued) 

South Central Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30, 2011 
Section II Internal Control and Compliance Material to Federal Awards (Continued) 

Intemal Control and Compliance 

10-4 Recommendation - We recommend that the Commission administer the grant in 
accordance with the collection policy in place. 

Management's Response - The Commission abided by its collection policy in 
administering the loan program. Resolved. 

Section III Management Letter 

A management letter was not issued in connection with the audit for the year ended Jime 30, 
2010. 
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MANAGEMENT'S CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 

South Centra] Planning & Development Commission, Inc. 

For the year ended June 30, 2011 

Section I Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Basic Financial Statements 

Intemal Control 

No material weaknesses were noted during the audit for the year ended June 3 0,2011. 
No significant deficiencies were reported during the audit for the year ended June 30,2011. 

Compliance 

No compliance findings material to the financial statements were noted during the audit for 
the year ended June 30,2011. 

Section U Internal Control and Compliance Material to Federal Awards 

Intemal Control and Compliance 

There were no federal award findings or questioned costs reported during the audit for the 
year ended June 30, 2011. 

Section III Management Letter 

11-1 Recommendation - We recommend that the Commission follow all intemal guidelines and 
update all loan folders accordingly to the pohcy in effect when the loan was issued. 

Response - The Commission will strive to abide by all intemal guidelines and update all loan 
folders accordingly. 
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Bourgeois Bennett 
•J'CCRTtBED^UBUCACCOUNTANTS 1 CONSULTANTS 

& LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 

To the Board of Commissioners, 
South Central Planning and Development Commission, 

Houma, Louisiana. 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the South Central Planning and 
Development Commission (the Commission), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, and have 
issued our report thereon dated December 27, 2011. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General 
of the United States. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Commission's 
intemal control in order to determine our auditmg procedures for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the basic financial statements and not to provide assurance on intemal control. 

However, during our audit we became aware of matters, which represent immaterial 
noncompliance with certam provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. The 
memorandum that accompanies this letter summarizes our suggestions and recommendations 
regarding these matters. We previously reported on the Commission's comphance in our report 
dated December 27, 2011. This letter does not affect our report dated December 27, 2011 on the 
basic financial statements ofthe Commission. 

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have 
already discussed the comments and recommendations with the Commission, and we will be 
pleased to discuss them in further detail at your convenience, to perform an additional study ofthe 
matters or to assist you m implementing the recommendations. 

Sincerely, 

/ O ^ U M j 2 ^ />!%^%M£^ L I C ^ 

Certified Public Accountants. 
Houma, Louisiana, 
December 27,2011. 
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTS 

South Central Planning and Development Commission 

For the year ended June 30,2011 

11-1 Condition - Loans issued before January 2011 followed a previous pohcy During the 
sample it was note one loan issued under this policy was not charged a 5% late fee. In 
addition, 5 loans tested imder this policy were granted deferrals but no references to the 
approval of these deferrals were made m the minutes. 

Loans issued after January 2011 followed the new policy. One loan tested under the new 
policy did not have documentation of a temporary approval of workout plan or moratoria of 
up to six months. Also, one loan issued under the new policy did not have documentation of 
board approval of deferment or workout plan in minutes. 

Context - Isolated to loan borrowers affected by the BP oil spill whom were granted 
general deferments. Additionally, we noted a single borrower was not charged a 5% late 
fee. 

Effect - The Commission did not follow tfie intemal guideline policy. 

Cause - The Commission overlooked these individual guideline items 

Recommendation - We recommend that the Commission follow all intemal guidelines and 
update all loan folders according to the pohcy in effect when the loan was issued. 


